

Planning Commission
July 17, 2013
Page 5
MANHEIM TOWNSHIP
 PLANNING COMMISSION 
MINUTES
Wednesday 
July 17, 2013


A meeting of the Manheim Township Planning Commission was held on Wednesday, 
July 17, 2013 at 6:30 p.m. The following members were present: Mr. Ian Hodge; Mr. Donald Reed; Mr. Walter Lee, Mr. Jeffery Swinehart; Michel Gibeault; Mrs. Stacie Reidenbaugh; and Mrs. Anita Blumenstock. The following Township Staff was present: Mrs. Lisa Douglas.	

Roll Call
Mr. Gibeault called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and conducted roll call. 

Minutes
Mr. Gibeault asked for a motion on the June 19, 2013 Planning Commission meeting minutes. 
On a motion by Mrs. Reidenbaugh, seconded by Mr. Hodge it was recommended to approve the June 19, 2013 meeting minutes. 
Motion Approved 7-0.

Subdivision/Land Development Plan
1. 1661 Manheim Pike – Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan – 1661 Manheim Pike – Zoned B-4 Business.
	Present representing this Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan was Mr. Steve Gergely, Harbor Engineering and Mr. Ong, landowner.
	Mr. Gergely provided a brief overview indicating that a small addition would be added to an existing building.
	Mr. Gergely indicated that the access point was relocated and the parking was reconfigured.
	Mr. Gergely indicated that all necessary zoning variances were obtained from the Zoning Hearing Board. 
	Mr. Gergely indicated that he would go through the modifications if the Planning Commission so desired.

There were no further discussions.

Mr. Gibeault asked for public comment. There was no response.
	On a motion by Mr. Hodge, seconded by Mr. Swinehart, it was recommended to approve this plan and modifications contingent upon a clean review letter and contingent upon the applicant obtaining PennDOT Highway Occupancy Plan approvals prior to presenting the plan to the Board of Commissioners for action.
	
Motion Approved 7-0.


2. Lancaster County Solid Waste Management Authority – Preliminary/Final Subdivision and Land Development Plan – 1299 Harrisburg Pike – Zoned I-1 Industrial.
	Present representing this Preliminary/Final Subdivision and Land Development Plan was Mr. Scott Hain, David Miller Associates; Mr. Mark Stanley, Hartman Underhill & Brubaker; and David Wilhelm, Lancaster County Solid Waste Management Authority.
	Mr. Hain provided a brief overview indicating that Lancaster County Solid Waste Management Authority is acquiring land from Burnham and developing a portion of the property for a slow and quick fill natural gas fueling station for their vehicles and other haulers doing business at the site.
	Mr. Hain indicated that sidewalk would be extended along a portion of Harrisburg Pike as part of the project. 
	Mr. Hain indicated that all necessary zoning variances were obtained from the Zoning Hearing Board. 
	Mr. Wilhelm indicated that initially the Lancaster County Solid Waste Management Authority would convert 14 of their trucks to natural gas. 

There were no further discussions.

Mr. Gibeault asked for public comment. There was no response.

On a motion by Mr. Reed, seconded by Mr. Hodge, it was recommended to approve this plan and modifications contingent upon a clean review letter.
	
Motion Approved 7-0.


3. Hillcrest – Preliminary Subdivision and Land Development Plan – 1575 Hillcrest Avenue – Zoned R-2 Residential with TDR Option.
	Present representing this Preliminary Subdivision and Land Development Plan was Mr. Rob Gabriel, Gabriel Engineering, and Mr. Peter Alecxih, landowner.
	Mr. Gabriel provided a brief overview indicating that the property would be subdivided into seven (7) lots accessed by a private street.
	Mr. Gabriel indicated that the stormwater design would allow for infiltration with a large rain garden.  Mr. Gabriel indicated that a homeowners association would be created to maintain the stormwater facilities. 
	
There were no further discussions.

Mr. Gibeault asked for public comment. There was no response.

On a motion by Mrs. Reidenbaugh, seconded by Mr. Reed, it was recommended to table this plan and modifications until all outstanding review comments are adequately addressed.
	
Motion Approved 7-0.



	Conditional Use Request
	1. 	Kissel Hill Commons Planned Residential Development – Revised Conditional Use – Lots 289 & 290 - Brentwood Drive, Paxton Place and Thornberry Lane - Zoned R-2.
	Present representing this Revised Conditional Use Request was Mr. Robert Wolf, Neffsville Associates and Mr. Gregory Strausser, Strausser Surveying and Engineering.
	Mr. Wolf indicated that a full presentation was given at the last Planning Commission meeting and that they did not have any new information to present.  Mr. Wolf asked the Planning Commission whether they had specific questions or whether they would like another presentation.
	Mr. Gibeault indicated that the applicant should proceed with a presentation since some of the Planning Commission members were absent at the last Planning Commission meeting. 
	Mr. Wolf summarized that originally the Kissel Hill Commons Planned Residential Development (PRD) was proposed to consist of 4 commercial lots and that 2 of the 4 commercial lots have been constructed.
	Mr. Wolf advised that even though they have been actively marketing the remaining two commercial lots, there just isn’t any interest due to the commercial component being set back so far from the main road which creates no visibility for the general public. 
	Mr. Wolf indicated that in place of building commercial buildings, the applicants are seeking to construct apartments and townhomes and advised that the design idea would be to mirror the existing commercial structures on the opposite side in an effort to mimic the same building line, size, shape, streetscape and architecture. 
	Mr. Strausser briefly discussed the modification requests.  
There were no further discussions.

Mr. Gibeault asked for public comment. There was no response.

On a motion by Mr. Reed, seconded by Mr. Hodge, it was recommended to approve the Revised Conditional Use request. 
	
Motion Approved 7-0.
		The public hearing is scheduled for September 9, 2013.	
	Text Amendment
1. Manheim Township School District, Hess Home Builders, Inc., Oak Tree Development Group, Hawthorne Centre Associates, LP, SKL Properties, LP, Regency V, LP, Lancaster Resort Limited Partnership, Landis Valley Partners, LP, Springwood Development Partners, LP, Lausch Lane Associates, LP, Manheim Pike Group, LP, Keller Avenue Partners LP, Whiteford Road Associates, LLC, 120 North Pointe Condominium Associates, and Landis Homes – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Petition - Article 20 Regulations, Section 2008, Subsection 1 and 2 – Parking Area Dimensions.  
	Present representing this text amendment was Mrs. Caroline Hoffer of Barley Snyder and Mr. Sandy Kime of the ELA Group.
	Mrs. Anita Blumenstock recused herself due to a potential conflict of interest.
	Mrs. Hoffer provided a packet of information to the Planning Commission members and noted that a number of applicants were present.  Mrs. Hoffer indicated that the request is to change the minimum off-street parking space width from 10’ to 9’.  
	Mrs. Hoffer indicated that prior to the new Zoning Ordinance a 9’ width was the minimum requirement.  Mrs. Hoffer indicated that the vast majority of off-street parking spaces have been constructed with a 9’ width. 
	Mrs. Hoffer indicated that the text amendment was to be presented at the LUAB meeting in June but they did not have a quorum.  She indicated that the text amendment would be acted on by LCPC on August 12, 2013.			
	Mr. Kime indicated that in prior Zoning Ordinances, the 1980 and the 1989 editions the minimum width was 9’. Mr. Kime indicated that the 9’ width would help eliminate excess impervious.
	Mr. Kime indicated that based on the 85th percentile the parking space width would be 8’3”.
	Mrs. Reidenbaugh indicated that the reduced parking stall width has been a topic of discussion for some time with the Planning Commission members and that the members were aware that the parking stalls at the municipal building were 9’ wide because they were measured by the members.  Mrs. Reidenbaugh indicated that she does have some concern because it is difficult getting in and out of a vehicle with infants and elderly parents within the confines of a small parking stall.  Mrs. Reidenbaugh recognized that the prior ordinances permitted a stall width of 9’.
	Mr. Hodge suggested a parking space width of 9’6”.
	Mr. Swinehart expressed similar concerns as Mrs. Reidenbaugh.
	Mr. Gibeault summarized the expressed concerns but supported the reduced width.
	
Mr. Gibeault asked for public comment. 
	Mr. Michael Obrien of Oak Tree Development, an applicant expressed his support for the amendment.
	Mr. Bovie expressed his concern over parking stall width and wondered about the parking spaces sizes at Costco.

On a motion by Mr. Reed, seconded by Mr. Lee, it was recommended to approve the text amendment.

Mr. Gibeault called for a vote.

Motion Approved 5-0. (with Mrs. Blumenstock and Mrs. Reidenbaugh abstaining).
		The public hearing is scheduled for September 9, 2013.	

Public Comment
There was no public comment.

Adjournment
On a motion by Mr. Reed, seconded by Mr. Hodge, it was recommended to adjourn the meeting.
Motion approved 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m.
	The next Regular Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, August 21, 2013 at 6:30 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Lisa Douglas
